





Assessment of dexmedetomidine effects on left ventricular function using pressure-volume loops in rats

Kyuho Lee

Department of Medicine

The Graduate School, Yonsei University



Assessment of dexmedetomidine effects on left ventricular function using pressure-volume loops in rats

Directed by Professor Young Jun Oh

The Doctoral Dissertation submitted to the Department of Medicine the Graduate School of Yonsei University in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy

Kyuho Lee

December 2016



This certifies that the Doctoral Dissertation of Kyuho Lee is approved.

Thesis Supervisor : Young Jun Oh

Thesis Committee Member#1 : Yongsun Choi

Thesis Committee Member#2 : Yunseok Jeon

Thesis Committee Member#3: Boyoung Joung

Thesis Committee Member#4: Sahng Wook Park

The Graduate School Yonsei University

December 2016



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

First of all, I would like to express the deepest appreciation to my thesis supervisor, Professor Young Jun Oh, who has encouraged me throughout the whole process. This dissertation would not have been possible without his guidance and persistent help.

I would like to thank my committee members, Professor Yongsun Choi, Yunseok Jeon, Boyoung Joung and Sahng Wook Park, whose expert, sincere and valuable advice and guidance truly enriched this doctoral thesis. I also wish to thank Ok Soo Kim and Hye Jeong Hwang who has lent their helping hand in this venture.

I take this opportunity to record my sincere thanks to all of my colleagues at the Department of Anesthesia and Pain Medicine for their help and encouragement.

Finally, I dedicate this work to my loving family – their unconditional love and constant support is what made all of this possible.

Kyuho Lee



<TABLE OF CONTENTS>

ABSTRACT	1
I. INTRODUCTION	3
II. MATERIALS AND METHODS	5
1. Animal preparation and drug treatment	5
2. Assessment of steady-state hemodynamic parameters	7
3. Assessment of preload-independent parameters	7
4. Pressure-volume loop data calibration	8
5. Statistical analysis	8
II. RESULTS	9
1. Steady-state hemodynamic parameters	9
2. Preload-independent parameters	12
IV. DISCUSSION	14
V. CONCLUSION	20
REFERENCES	21
ABSTRACT (IN KOREAN)	26



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Steady-state hemodynamic parameters11
Figure 2. Pressure-volume loops during inferior vena cava
occlusion13

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.	Steady-state hemodynamic parameters	10
Table 2.	Preload-independent parameters	12



ABSTRACT

Assessment of dexmedetomidine effects on left ventricular function using pressure-volume loops in rats

Kyuho Lee

Department of Medicine The Graduate School, Yonsei University

(Directed by Professor Young Jun Oh)

The role of dexmedetomidine on left ventricular function is not clearly known. The aim of the present study was to determine whether dexmedetomidine has a myocardial depressive effect by analyzing pressure-volume loops in a rat model.

Thirty-two Sprague-Dawley rats were anesthetized and a pressure-volume loop catheter was advanced via the right carotid artery into the left ventricle. Rats were divided into four groups (n=8 each group). 0.1 ml of normal saline, 1.0, 2.5, and 5.0 μ g/kg dexmedetomidine were infused over 10 minutes via the internal jugular vein to the control group, Dex1.0, Dex2.5, and Dex5.0 groups, respectively. Steady-state hemodynamics were recorded. Intermittent inferior vena cava occlusion was done to assess preload-independent indices. Statistical analysis was performed by analysis of variance.

Compared with the control group, changes in Dex1.0 group were insignificant. In Dex2.5 group, only the systolic blood pressure was higher (vs. control, P = 0.03), and other parameters were insignificant. Dex5.0 group



.

exhibited a lower heart rate, higher systolic blood pressure, higher arterial elastance (vs. control, all P < 0.001), and unaltered cardiac output. Dex5.0 group showed steeper slopes of end-systolic pressure increment and end-systolic pressure-volume relationship than the control, Dex1.0, and Dex2.5 groups (all P < 0.001). Slopes of end-diastolic pressure decrement and end-diastolic pressure-volume relationship did not differ among groups.

Dexmedetomidine had no direct myocardial depressant effect in the rat heart in doses that are similar to those encountered under clinical conditions. Dexmedetomidine did not significantly alter the ability of the heart to cope with bradycardia and greatly increased afterload. Their potentially negative impact on cardiac output was effectively attenuated by improved myocardial contractility and preserved diastolic function in healthy subjects.

Key words: dexmedetomidine; pressure-volume loop; left-ventricular function



Assessment of dexmedetomidine effects on left ventricular function using pressure-volume loops in rats

Kyuho Lee

Department of Medicine The Graduate School, Yonsei University

(Directed by Professor Young Jun Oh)

I. INTRODUCTION

Dexmedetomidine, the pharmacologically active d-isomer of medetomidine, is an exceedingly selective α_2 -adrenergic agonist with 8-fold higher affinity for the α_2 -adrenoceptor than clonidine.¹ It reduces sedative, anxiolytic, and analgesic requirements in the perioperative period without causing significant respiratory depression.¹⁻³ In addition to its anesthetic-sparing action, potent reduction in sympathetic outflow in response to noxious stimulation made this drug popular as an adjuvant to general anesthesia.^{4,5}

Despite these advantages, there are case reports describing adverse events such as intractable cardiac arrest after dexmedetomidine administration.⁶⁻⁸ The sympatholytic effect, which is accompanied by bradycardia, is thought to account for the decreased cardiac output.^{9,10} However, studies found that autonomic denervation did not abolish the cardiovascular effects, implying that the decrease in sympathetic tone was not the sole cause of cardiac dysfunction.^{10,11} Although there have been few studies searching for myocardial



depressive effect induced by dexmedetomidine,^{11,12} its role on the left ventricular function still remains unclear because alterations in loading conditions interfered precise interpretation of the collected data in previous studies.

Pressure-volume (PV) analysis is a useful approach for examining intact ventricular function independently from loading conditions. Assessing PV loops in human subjects has been restricted due to its invasiveness, but recent validation of miniature PV catheters has made it possible to use this approach for studies in small animals. In the present study we assessed PV loops in a rat model to determine whether dexmedetomidine has depressive effect on left ventricular function.



II. MATERIALS AND METHODS

1. Animal preparation and drug treatment

All procedures of this study were performed in Severance Biomedical Science Institute in Yonsei University College of Medicine, Seoul, South Korea under approval of the Yonsei University Institutional Animal Care and Use Committee. Experiment was performed on 32 male Sprague-Dawley rats that were 3-4 months old and weighed (mean \pm SD) 285 \pm 14 grams. The rats were allowed to adjust to the controlled laboratory environment for at least 7 days, which consisted of a temperature of 23 °C \pm 2 °C, humidity of 50% \pm 10%, lighting of 350 lux and a light:dark cycle with 12-hour durations. The rats had free access to standard laboratory chow and tap water prior to experiment. Animals were monitored twice daily for health status, and no adverse events were observed during housing period.

Anesthesia techniques that have minimal effects on the animals' heart rates were used.¹³ After being anesthetized with an intraperitoneal injection of tiletamine/zolazepam (10 mg/kg; Zoletil, Virbac Laboratories, Carros, France) and 2 % xylazine hydrochloride (2 mg/kg; Rompun, Bayer, Leverkusen, Germany). the rats were placed in the supine position on a temperature-controlled circuit board (Indus Instruments, Houston, TX, USA) with the temperature set to 37 °C. An inverted T-shaped middle-neck incision from mandible to the sternum was made, and the right carotid artery and the right internal jugular vein were dissected and exposed. A catheter was inserted



in the jugular vein and forwarded into the superior vena cava 0.5 cm above the right atrium for drug administration. A Millar Mikro-Tip conductance catheter (SPR-838, Millar Instruments Inc., Houston, TX, USA) was introduced into the carotid artery and advanced, passing through the aortic valve and into the left ventricle.¹⁴ The signal from the PV catheter was continuously assessed at a sampling rate of 1000 Hz using MPVS-Ultra Single Segment Pressure-Volume Unit (Millar Instruments Inc.). Correct and consistent placement of the PV catheter was based on the PV loop values and overall shape of the generated loops. To perform the inferior vena cava occlusion, a laparotomy was done and a snare was positioned around the inferior vena cava. Then, the rats were allowed to stabilize for 5 minutes before measurement was performed.

After stabilization period, randomization procedure was done by choosing a card from a French playing card deck, which consisted of 4 symbols (spades, hearts, diamonds, and clubs), with 8 cards per symbol. The rats were randomly allocated into four groups according to the selected symbol (n=8 per group). The infusions were prepared by an assistant who mixed the drugs with normal saline to make comparable volume. Therefore, the experimenters were blinded to the pharmacological treatment while processing data. The control group received a 10-minute infusion of 0.1 ml normal saline by the intravenous route. The other three groups (Dex1.0, Dex2.5, and Dex5.0 group) received 1.0, 2.5, and 5.0 μ g/kg dexmedetomidine (Hospira, Lake Forest, IL, USA) in the identical fashion, respectively.



2. Assessment of steady-state hemodynamic parameters

The PV loops were assessed for 30 minutes to acquire steady-state hemodynamic variables using PVAN 3.6 software (Millar Instruments Inc.). 10-20 steady-state loops were collected, and the values were averaged from two to three measurements collected over 30 minutes. Also, systolic blood pressure and mean blood pressure were measured by the tail-cuff method. The measured steady-state hemodynamic parameters are as follows: heart rate (HR), systolic blood pressure measured by tail-cuff method (SBP), mean blood pressure measured by tail-cuff method (MBP), left ventricular end-systolic pressure (LVESP), left ventricular end-diastolic pressure (LVEDP), left ventricular end-diastolic volume (LVEDV), stroke volume (SV), stroke work (SW), arterial elastance (E_a), cardiac output (CO), ejection fraction (EF), maximal slope of the end-systolic pressure increment (dp/dt_{max}), maximal slope of the end-diastolic pressure decrement (dP/dt_{min}), and time constant of left ventricular pressure decay (τ).

3. Assessment of preload-independent parameters

To assess left ventricular PV relationships, the inferior vena cava was intermittently occluded by manually pulling the snare for 3 seconds. During inferior vena cava occlusion periods, the slope of the end-systolic pressure-volume relationship (ESPVR), preload recruitable stroke work



(PRSW), and slope of the end-diastolic pressure-volume relationship (EDPVR) using a linear fit were measured.

4. Pressure-volume loop data calibration

Parallel conductance (V_p) was determined individually using a 10-12 µL bolus of 30% saline injected into the right internal jugular vein.¹⁵ The cuvette calibration method (Millar Instruments Inc.) was used to calculate the absolute volume data. Using PVAN 3.6 software, the PV loop data were processed to compute cardiac parameters.¹⁵ At the end of the experiment the animals were sacrificed through heart excision.

5. Statistical analysis

Analyses were performed with GraphPad Prism 5.04 (GraphPad Software, Inc., San Diego, CA, USA). Data are described as means \pm SE. Statistical analyses for the comparisons between the groups were performed using one-way analysis of variance by Tukey's multiple comparison test. P values less than 0.05 were considered significant.



III. RESULTS

1. Steady-state hemodynamic parameters

The experiment was successfully completed in all subjects without adverse events. Baseline hemodynamic data are shown in Table 1 and Figure 1. None of the parameters of Dex1.0 group showed significant differences when compared with the control group. In Dex2.5 group, only SBP was higher than that of the control group (P = 0.03) and differences in other parameters were insignificant. Dex5.0 group exhibited lower HR, higher SBP, higher E_a (vs. control, all P < 0.001), and unaltered CO. MBP, LVESP, and SW of Dex5.0 group were higher than those of the control group and Dex1.0 group (all P < 0.001). Particularly, dP/dt_{max} of Dex5.0 group was significantly steeper than that of the other three groups (all P < 0.001). Changes in LVEDP, LVEDV, SV, EF, dP/dt_{min}, and Tau of Dex5.0 group were insignificant.



	Control	Dex1.0	Dex2.5	Dex5.0
HR (beats/min)	306.2 ± 7.1	278.0 ± 8.95	272.7 ± 9.1	$254.0\pm6.8\texttt{*}$
SBP (mmHg)	100.2 ± 2.7	103.4 ± 3.1	$136.1\pm2.4\texttt{*}$	$200.2\pm5.8^{*} \dagger$
MBP (mmHg)	80.12 ± 3.2	83.1 ± 4.1	101.7 ± 4.3	$161.4\pm5.8^{*}\dagger$
LVESP (mmHg)	99.9 ± 6.5	105.2 ± 5.5	136.8 ± 5.8	$201.9\pm7.5^{*}\dagger$
LVEDP (mmHg)	8.8 ± 1.1	10.1 ± 0.8	11.5 ± 1.0	12.5 ± 1.1
LVEDV (µl)	221.4 ± 10.2	235.2 ± 11.5	254.0 ± 13.6	262.9 ± 13.0
SV (µl)	137.4 ± 13.1	151.3 ± 14.2	157.4 ± 12.9	173.0 ± 11.0
SW (mmHg×µl)	10555 ± 897	11692 ± 1263	16348 ± 1362	28912 ± 2027*†
$E_a \left(mmHg/\mu l\right)$	0.89 ± 0.08	0.88 ± 0.06	1.25 ± 0.08	$2.59\pm0.15^*\dagger$
CO (µl/min)	42175 ± 1585	41534 ± 1345	40769 ± 1643	44033 ± 1592
EF (%)	62.2 ± 2.3	64.8 ± 3.5	61.3 ± 3.6	66.8 ± 3.5
dP/dt _{max} (mmHg/s)	7720 ± 433	8161 ± 424	8392 ± 509	$10901 \pm 448*\dagger$ ‡
dP/dt _{min} (mmHg/s)	6331 ± 226	6256 ± 275	6574 ± 310	7884 ± 547
Tau (ms)	12.6 ± 1.3	12.0 ± 1.2	12.4 ± 1.4	14.3 ± 1.6

 Table 1. Steady-state hemodynamic parameters.

Values are expressed as mean \pm SE. HR, heart rate; SBP, systolic blood pressure measured by tail-cuff method; MBP, mean blood pressure measured by tail-cuff method; LVESP, left ventricular end-systolic pressure; LVEDP, left ventricular end-diastolic pressure; LVEDV, left ventricular end-diastolic volume; SV, stroke volume; SW, stroke work; E_a, arterial elastance; CO, cardiac output; EF, ejection fraction; dP/dt_{max}, maximal slope of the systolic pressure increment; dP/dt_{min}, maximal slope of the diastolic pressure decrement; Tau, time constant of left ventricular pressure decay. Significances indicated by



* P<0.05 vs. the control group, by † P<0.05 vs. Dex1.0 group, by ‡ P<0.05 vs. Dex2.5 group.



Figure 1. Steady-state hemodynamic parameters. (A) HR, (B) SBP, (C) E_a , (D) CO, (E) dP/dt_{max}, and (F) dP/dt_{min}. Data are mean with error bars showing SE. HR, heart rate; SBP, systolic blood pressure measured by tail-cuff method; E_a , arterial elastance; CO, cardiac output; dP/dt_{max}, maximal slope of the systolic pressure increment; dP/dt_{min}, maximal slope of the diastolic pressure decrement. Significances indicated by * P<0.05 vs. the control group, by † P<0.05 vs. Dex1.0 group, by ‡ P<0.05 vs. Dex2.5 group.



2. Preload-independent parameters

Functional indices derived from PV loop analysis at different preloads are shown in Table 2. Figure 2 depicts representative original PV loops recorded during transient occlusion of the inferior vena cava. Changes in Dex1.0 group and Dex2.5 group were insignificant compared with the control group. The slope of ESPVR in Dex5.0 group was significantly steeper than that of the control group, Dex1.0 group, and Dex2.5 group (all P < 0.001). PRSW of Dex5.0 group was also higher than that of the control group and Dex1.0 group (both P < 0.001). The slope of EDPVR did not differ between the groups.

Table 2. Preload-independent parameters.

	Control	Dex1.0	Dex2.5	Dex5.0
ESPVR (mmHg/µl)	0.67 ± 0.06	0.69 ± 0.07	0.77 ± 0.06	$1.49 \pm 0.11*^{\dagger}^{\ddagger}_{}$
PRSW (mmHg)	58.6 ± 4.0	59.4 ± 4.8	82.2 ± 5.9	$147.2\pm8.7^{*}\dagger$
EDPVR (mmHg/µl)	0.039 ± 0.004	0.036 ± 0.005	0.043 ± 0.007	0.046 ± 0.006

Values are expressed as mean \pm SE. ESPVR, end-systolic pressure-volume relationship; PRSW, preload recruitable stroke work; EDPVR, end-diastolic pressure-volume relationship. Significances indicated by * P<0.05 vs. the control group, by \ddagger P<0.05 vs. Dex1.0 group, by \ddagger P<0.05 vs. Dex2.5 group.





Figure 2. Pressure-volume loops during inferior vena cava occlusion. ESPVR and EDPVR in one representative animal from the control (A), Dex1.0 (B), (C), Dex5.0 (D) groups ESPVR, Dex2.5 are shown. end-systolic relationship; pressure-volume EDPVR, end-diastolic pressure-volume relationship.



IV. DISCUSSION

In the present study we investigated the effect of dexmedetomidine on the left ventricular performance in a rat model. We administered three different doses (1.0, 2.5, and 5.0 μ g/kg) and assessed PV loops. The preload-independent parameters were used in order to detect deterioration of left ventricular function. As a result, 1.0 μ g/kg and 2.5 μ g/kg dexmedetomidine did not induce notable changes. 5.0 μ g/kg dexmedetomidine produced prominent bradycardia and hypertension but CO was preserved, which presumably owed to greatly improved myocardial contractility and preserved diastolic function. Our results did not support a direct myocardial depressant action of dexmedetomidine.

The United States Food and Drug Administration recommends a loading infusion of 1.0 μ g/kg dexmedetomidine over 10 minutes in clinical practice. However, appropriate dosage guideline for rats is not clearly known, and in previous studies the researchers had administered various doses of dexmedetomidine widely ranging from 1.0 to 100 μ g/kg.¹⁶⁻¹⁸ Since extreme doses may exaggerate the drug effect, we sought for doses relevant to human usage. There was an article which the authors consecutively infused 1.0, 2.5, 5.0, 10, and 20 μ g/kg and demonstrated that the sedative effect could be observed with lower doses, judged by the loss of righting reflex.¹⁸ Also, a report indicated that the animal dose could be roughly translated to the human equivalent dose by calculating factors based on body surface area of the two species, which are already known.¹⁹ On the basis of these evidences, we selected 1.0, 2.5, and 5.0



 μ g/kg as our experimental doses, which encompass the normal human dose range.

Our finding suggested that dexmedetomidine infusions of 1.0 and 2.5 µg/kg did not induce significant changes in hemodynamic parameters in rats, whereas the administration of 5.0 µg/kg induced prominent bradycardia. The bradycardia after dexmedetomidine administration is due to the predominant sympatholytic effect, which is characterized by the suppression of plasma catecholamine concentration and cardiac conduction.^{20,21} In the past, bradycardia was considered a major cause of the decline in CO after dexmedetomidine administration.^{9,10} However, studies found that autonomic denervation did not abolish the peripheral cardiovascular effects, but may even strengthen them, implying that the sympatholytic effect was not the sole cause of cardiac dysfunction.^{10,11} Nonetheless, there are differing views on what the other causes of cardiac depression might be. Housman et al.²² proposed that no negative inotropic effects from dexmedetomidine were observed in isolated canine hearts or in ferret papillary muscles. Flacke et al.²³ hypothesized that α_2 -adrenergic agonists could induce coronary vasoconstriction, which could potentially lead to myocardial ischemia. In our study, Ea of Dex5.0 group was markedly higher than that of the control group, suggesting that profound vasoconstriction was induced by 5.0 µg/kg dexmedetomidine. The distinct elevation of LVESP and SBP observed in Dex5.0 group also correlated with this finding, and the



increase in afterload might have played an important role in restricting the cardiac function.

We presumed that dexmedetomidine could directly impair the left ventricular function and thus induce a decline in CO. Interestingly, even in the bradycardic and vasoconstrictive environment, CO was well preserved in Dex5.0 group. Moreover, distinct increase of dP/dt_{max} indicated that myocardial contractility was not suppressed, but enhanced by dexmedetomidine, which could provide an explanation for the preserved CO. Since dP/dt_{max} could be influenced by changes in preload, we applied the inferior vena cava occlusion technique to evaluate preload-independent parameters. The slope of ESPVR, a useful preload-independent measure of contractile function,²⁴ showed a significant increase in Dex5.0 group. This finding was further supported by an increase in PRSW, which is also a sensitive preload-independent contractility parameter. From these results we could draw the conclusion that dexmedetomidine did not suppress myocardial contractility; instead, a compensatory increase of myocardial contractility was induced to maintain cardiac output in a bradycardic and hypertensive environment. Hence, the depressed ventricular function which occurred after dexmedetomidine administration in previous reports^{11,12} could have been due to factors other than direct depression of the myocardium.

The increase of ventricular contractility is seldom observed in previous studies associated with dexmedetomidine. Although our findings clearly indicate that



dexmedetomidine did not suppress myocardial contractility, there is a possibility that increased ventricular contractility was a result of complex cardiovascular homeostatic mechanism, rather than an effect induced by dexmedetomidine. Unfortunately, we could not verify such hypothesis in the present study. According to our knowledge, only one article reported inotropic effect induced by dexmedetomidine.¹⁰ The authors reported that extreme doses which are far beyond doses maximally effective in intact animals could release catecholamines from cardiac stores, accompanied by positive inotropic and positive chronotropic effects. However, doses involved in the present study were much lower, and we could not observe any increase in HR. Therefore, it seems premature to conclude that dexmedetomidine increased myocardial contractility.

An article reported that dexmedetomidine increased LVEDP, suggesting impaired diastolic function.²³ However, our results demonstrated that LVEDP remained stable regardless of the administrated doses. The slope of EDPVR did not differ between the groups, which indicated unchanged LV stiffness in all groups. In addition, other diastolic parameters such as Tau and dP/dt_{min} behaved in an identical fashion, which strengthened our view that dexmedetomidine had no distinct effect on diastolic function. However, there is an evidence that dexmedetomidine impaired diastolic function in subjects with pre-existing heart disease,²⁵ and it must be pointed out that our study included only young and healthy rats. It is questionable whether the diastolic function could still be



preserved if our experiment were conducted on incompetent hearts, and this issue deserves further investigation.

Dexmedetomidine has complex direct vascular effects, because it can induce both vasoconstriction and vasodilation, due to the presence of two different subtypes of α_2 -adrenoceptor: the α_{2A} -adrenoceptor is responsible for whereas the α_{2B} -adrenoceptor induces vasoconstriction.²⁶ vasodilation. Specifically, vasoconstriction is due to contraction of vascular smooth muscle regulated by Ca^{2+} -dependent or Ca^{2+} -sensitization mechanism, ^{27,28} and vasodilation is associated with the action of endothelial nitric oxide synthase within the vascular endothelium.²⁹ However, how these two opposing tendencies interact with each other is not clear. In an attempt to explain the biphasic response, one article suggested that an initially predominant vasoconstriction effect was abolished by a vasodilation effect as time elapsed.³⁰ Nonetheless, the time course of changes in blood pressure after dexmedetomidine administration is still not well established. Although there is evidence suggesting that the initial hypertension lasted for 5 to 10 minutes,³¹ the time required to observe the biphasic response varied among studies.^{23,32} Since the optimal time was not clear, we arbitrarily set the time of measurement at 30 minutes.

Limitations of this study are as follows; although our measurement time was adequate to assess steady-state PV loop variables, we could not observe the biphasic change in blood pressure. However, we could not extend our



observation time because prolonged maintenance of the PV catheter might by itself have negatively affected the hemodynamic stability. Also, interspecies difference cannot be excluded.



V. CONCLUSION

The clinically relevant finding of this study is that dexmedetomidine had no direct myocardial depressant effect in the rat heart in doses that are similar to those encountered under clinical conditions. Dexmedetomidine did not significantly alter the ability of the heart to cope with bradycardia and greatly increased afterload. Their potentially negative impact on CO was effectively attenuated by improved myocardial contractility and preserved diastolic function in healthy subjects.



REFERENCES

 Virtanen R, Savola JM, Saano V, Nyman L. Characterization of the selectivity, specificity and potency of medetomidine as an alpha 2-adrenoceptor agonist. Eur J Pharmacol. 1988;150:9-14.

2. Paris A, Tonner PH. Dexmedetomidine in anaesthesia. Curr Opin Anaesthesiol. 2005;18:412-8.

3. Lin TF, Yeh YC, Lin FS, Wang YP, Lin CJ, Sun WZ, et al. Effect of combining dexmedetomidine and morphine for intravenous patient-controlled analgesia. Br J Anaesth. 2009;102:117-22.

4. Quintin L, Ghignone M, Pujol JF. The ability of the alpha 2-adrenergic agonist clonidine to suppress central noradrenergic hyperactivity secondary to hemodynamic or environmental stimuli. J Cardiovasc Pharmacol. 1987;10 Suppl 12:S128-34.

5. Kallio A, Scheinin M, Koulu M, Ponkilainen R, Ruskoaho H, Viinamaki O, et al. Effects of dexmedetomidine, a selective alpha 2-adrenoceptor agonist, on hemodynamic control mechanisms. Clin Pharmacol Ther. 1989;46:33-42.

6. Ingersoll-Weng E, Manecke GR, Jr., Thistlethwaite PA. Dexmedetomidine and cardiac arrest. Anesthesiology. 2004;100:738-9.

7. Sichrovsky TC, Mittal S, Steinberg JS. Dexmedetomidine sedation leading to refractory cardiogenic shock. Anesth Analg. 2008;106:1784-6.

8. Jaideep CN, Bhargava DV. Good vagal tone, a tourniquet and dexmedetomidine: Recipe for disaster. Indian J Anaesth. 2015;59:450-1.



9. Lee SH, Choi YS, Hong GR, Oh YJ. Echocardiographic evaluation of the effects of dexmedetomidine on cardiac function during total intravenous anaesthesia. Anaesthesia. 2015;70:1052-9.

10. Flacke WE, Flacke JW, Blow KD, McIntee DF, Bloor BC. Effect of dexmedetomidine, an alpha 2-adrenergic agonist, in the isolated heart. J Cardiothorac Vasc Anesth. 1992;6:418-23.

11. Schmeling WT, Kampine JP, Roerig DL, Warltier DC. The effects of the stereoisomers of the alpha 2-adrenergic agonist medetomidine on systemic and coronary hemodynamics in conscious dogs. Anesthesiology. 1991;75:499-511.

12. Flacke JW, Flacke WE, Bloor BC, McIntee DF. Hemodynamic effects of dexmedetomidine, an alpha 2-adrenergic agonist, in autonomically denervated dogs. J Cardiovasc Pharmacol. 1990;16:616-23.

13. Watson LE, Sheth M, Denyer RF, Dostal DE. Baseline echocardiographic values for adult male rats. J Am Soc Echocardiogr. 2004;17:161-7.

14. Burkhoff D, Mirsky I, Suga H. Assessment of systolic and diastolic ventricular properties via pressure-volume analysis: a guide for clinical, translational, and basic researchers. Am J Physiol Heart Circ Physiol. 2005;289:H501-12.

15. Georgakopoulos D, Mitzner WA, Chen CH, Byrne BJ, Millar HD, Hare JM, et al. In vivo murine left ventricular pressure-volume relations by miniaturized conductance micromanometry. Am J Physiol. 1998;274:H1416-22.

16. Park HJ, Kim YH, Koh HJ, Park CS, Kang SH, Choi JH, et al. Analgesic



effects of dexmedetomidine in vincristine-evoked painful neuropathic rats. J Korean Med Sci. 2012;27:1411-7.

17. Filbey WA, Sanford DT, Baghdoyan HA, Koch LG, Britton SL, Lydic R. Eszopiclone and dexmedetomidine depress ventilation in obese rats with features of metabolic syndrome. Sleep. 2014;37:871-80.

18. Bol CJ, Vogelaar JP, Mandema JW. Anesthetic profile of dexmedetomidine identified by stimulus-response and continuous measurements in rats. J Pharmacol Exp Ther. 1999;291:153-60.

19. Reagan-Shaw S, Nihal M, Ahmad N. Dose translation from animal to human studies revisited. FASEB journal : official publication of the Federation of American Societies for Experimental Biology. 2008;22:659-61.

20. Hammer GB, Drover DR, Cao H, Jackson E, Williams GD, Ramamoorthy C, et al. The effects of dexmedetomidine on cardiac electrophysiology in children. Anesth Analg. 2008;106:79-83, table of contents.

21. Singh S, Singh A. Dexmedetomidine induced catecholamine suppression in pheochromocytoma. J Nat Sci Biol Med. 2014;5:182-3.

22. Housmans PR. Effects of dexmedetomidine on contractility, relaxation, and intracellular calcium transients of isolated ventricular myocardium. Anesthesiology. 1990;73:919-22.

23. Flacke WE, Flacke JW, Bloor BC, McIntee DF, Sagan M. Effects of dexmedetomidine on systemic and coronary hemodynamics in the anesthetized dog. J Cardiothorac Vasc Anesth. 1993;7:41-9.



24. Kass DA, Beyar R, Lankford E, Heard M, Maughan WL, Sagawa K. Influence of contractile state on curvilinearity of in situ end-systolic pressure-volume relations. Circulation. 1989;79:167-78.

25. Lee SH, Na S, Kim N, Ban MG, Shin SE, Oh YJ. The Effects of Dexmedetomidine on Myocardial Function Assessed by Tissue Doppler Echocardiography During General Anesthesia in Patients With Diastolic Dysfunction: A CONSORT-Prospective, Randomized, Controlled Trial. Medicine (Baltimore). 2016;95:e2805.

26. Philipp M, Brede M, Hein L. Physiological significance of alpha(2)-adrenergic receptor subtype diversity: one receptor is not enough. Am J Physiol Regul Integr Comp Physiol. 2002;283:R287-95.

27. Akata T. Cellular and molecular mechanisms regulating vascular tone. Part
1: basic mechanisms controlling cytosolic Ca2+ concentration and the
Ca2+-dependent regulation of vascular tone. J Anesth. 2007;21:220-31.

28. Akata T. Cellular and molecular mechanisms regulating vascular tone. Part
2: regulatory mechanisms modulating Ca2+ mobilization and/or myofilament
Ca2+ sensitivity in vascular smooth muscle cells. J Anesth. 2007;21:232-42.

29. Figueroa XF, Poblete MI, Boric MP, Mendizabal VE, Adler-Graschinsky E, Huidobro-Toro JP. Clonidine-induced nitric oxide-dependent vasorelaxation mediated by endothelial alpha(2)-adrenoceptor activation. Br J Pharmacol. 2001;134:957-68.

30. Wong ES, Man RY, Vanhoutte PM, Ng KF. Dexmedetomidine induces both



relaxations and contractions, via different {alpha}2-adrenoceptor subtypes, in the isolated mesenteric artery and aorta of the rat. J Pharmacol Exp Ther. 2010;335:659-64.

31. Xu H, Aibiki M, Seki K, Ogura S, Ogli K. Effects of dexmedetomidine, an alpha2-adrenoceptor agonist, on renal sympathetic nerve activity, blood pressure, heart rate and central venous pressure in urethane-anesthetized rabbits. J Auton Nerv Syst. 1998;71:48-54.

32. Penttila J, Helminen A, Anttila M, Hinkka S, Scheinin H. Cardiovascular and parasympathetic effects of dexmedetomidine in healthy subjects. Can J Physiol Pharmacol. 2004;82:359-62.



ABSTRACT(IN KOREAN)

백서에서 텍스메데토미딘이 좌심실 기능에 미치는 영향의 압력-용적 고리를 통한 분석

<지도교수 오 영 준 >

연세대학교 대학원 의학과

이 규 호

텍스메데토미딘이 좌심실 기능에 어떠한 영향을 미치는가에 대해서는 아직 명확하게 밝혀진 바가 없다. 본 연구에서는 백서 모델에서 압력-용적 고리의 분석을 통해 텍스메데토미딘이 좌심실 기능의 저하를 일으키는지 알아보고자 하였다.

서른 두 마리의 백서를 마취시킨 후 압력 용적 고리 카테터를 우측 경동맥으로 삽입하여 좌심실까지 진입시켰다. 백서는 각 군당 8마리의 네 군 (대조군, Dex1.0군, Dex2.5군, Dex5.0군)으로 나누어서 각각 생리식염수 0.1밀리리터, 텍스메데토미딘 1.0, 2.5, 5.0 μg/kg을 10분에 걸쳐 오른쪽 내경정맥을 통해 주입하였다. 약물 주입 후 안정된 상태에서 혈역학적 데이터를 기록하였다. 그 후 하대정맥을 간헐적으로 폐쇄시키면서 전부하에 독립적인 지표들을 기록하였다. 통계분석은 일원배치 분산분석 방식으로 시행하였다.

26



Dex1.0군은 대조군과 비교하였을 때 유의미한 차이가 없었다. Dex2.5군에서는 수축기 혈압만이 대조군에 비해 높은 것으로 관찰되었다 (P=0.31). Dex5.0군에서는 유의미하게 낮은 심박동수, 높은 수축기 혈압, 높은 동맥탄성도가 관찰되었으나 (P < 0.001), 두 군간 심박출량의 차이는 관찰되지 않았다. 또한, Dex5.0군에서는 수축기말 압력증가의 기울기와 수축기말 압력-용적 관계가 다른 세 군에 비해 유의미하게 높았다 (P < 0.001). 하지만 이완기말 압력감소의 기울기나 이완기말 압력-용적 관계는 모든 군에 있어 유의미한 차이는 관찰되지 않았다.

임상에서 활용되는 용량의 덱스메데토미딘을 쥐에게 투여한 결과 직접적인 심근저하 효과는 관찰되지 않았다. 덱스메데토미딘 투여로 인해 유의미한 수준의 서맥과 후부하 증가가 발생하였지만, 심근 수축력 또한 향상되어 심박출량의 저하를 억제하고 정상적인 수준으로 유지시키는 데 기여한 것으로 판단된다.

핵심되는 말 : 덱스메데토미딘; 압력-용적 고리; 좌심실 기능